
 
 
 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 

FRIDAY, 6 JANUARY 2012 
 
 
 
Please find enclosed Urgent Business Notice in connection with the following: 
 
 
 
1. CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS (Pages 1 - 19) 
 
 
 
 
 
Queries regarding these documents 
 
Please contact Liz Bateson - Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582047, or email: 
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
Democratic Services, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
Lancaster LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on FRIDAY, 6 JANUARY 2012 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Councillor Kerr 
Chairman of the Overview  
and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
 
4 January 2012 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
 
URGENT BUSINESS – CLMIATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 
Please find attached a report that the Chairman of Cabinet and the Cabinet Member with 
Responsibility for Climate Change are being requested to consider.  The report proposes that 
Cabinet re-affirms its decision of the 4 October 2011 with regard to the installation of solar photo 
voltaic (PV) panels.  Please note that the two appendices to the report are exempt from 
publication. 
 
The Chief Executive is consulting with the Chairman of Cabinet with a view to making an urgent 
decision.  The reason for the urgency in this case is to enable the project to be implemented within 
the 2011/12 financial year. 
 
The issue is a Key Decision by virtue of its financial impact.  However, sufficient notice has not 
been included on the Forward Plan. I am writing to you to seek your approval that the taking of the 
decision cannot be reasonably deferred, in accordance with the Council’s Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 16.  Your agreement to waive the requirement for the issue to be included on the 
Forward Plan for five clear working days is required before the Chief Executive can take the 
decision in consultation with the Chairman of Cabinet. 
 
I would be grateful if you would consider the following: 
 

To waive the requirement to include five working days notice of the decision in the 
Forward Plan, in accordance with Access to Information Procedure Rule 16, in order 
that the decision can be taken without delay. 

 
Please complete the attached slip signifying your decision and return it to the Town Hall as soon 
as possible.  In the meantime, could you please telephone Liz Bateson on 5820476, or e-mail 
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk with your decision. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Liz Bateson 
Principal Democratic Support Officer 

Contact: Liz Bateson 
Telephone: (01524) 582047 
Fax: (01524) 582161 
Minicom: (01524) 582175 
E-mail: ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Our reference: UB79 
Your reference:  

HEAD OF GOVERNANCE 
 
Town Hall 
Dalton Square 
Lancaster 
LA1 1PJ 
 
DX 63531 

Agenda Item 1 Page 1



 

 
URGENT BUSINESS – CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 
 
*I agree/do not agree (*please delete as appropriate) 
 
 
To this matter being treated as a matter of urgency in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Procedure Rule 17(a) and therefore not being subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ...............................................................................  
 
 
 
Dated:.................................................................................  
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive Decision 
 
 
*I agree/do not agree (*please delete as appropriate) to this matter being treated as a matter of 
urgency in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rule 17(a) and therefore 
not being subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
Signed: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

Chief Executive 
 

Dated: -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
 
 
Please return to: Liz Bateson 
    Democratic Services, 
    Town Hall, 
    Dalton Square, 
    LANCASTER.       LA1 1PJ 
    Ref:  UB79 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Councillor Eileen Blamire (Leader of Cabinet) 
Councillor Tim Hamilton-Cox (Cabinet Member with  
Responsibility for Climate Change) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4 January 2012 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
 
URGENT BUSINESS – CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 
Members are requested to consider the attached report which proposes that Cabinet re-affirm its 
decision of 4 October 2011 regarding the installation of solar photo voltaic (PV) panels. 
 
An Urgent Business Decision is sought in order to implement the project within the 2011/12 
financial year. 
 
Whilst the issue is a Key Decision and was included on the Forward Plan on 22nd December, the 
issue has not been on the Forward Plan for five working days.  Therefore in accordance with 
Access to Information Procedure 16, the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny was requested 
and agreed, to waive the requirement for notice of the decision to be included in the Forward Plan 
for five working days before the decision is taken. 
 
The Urgent Business Procedure Rules authorise the Chief Executive to take urgent decisions 
which cannot reasonably wait until the next meeting of a committee, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the relevant committee. 
 
I would be grateful if you could complete the attached slip, signifying whether you are in agreement 
with the recommendation or not, and return it to the Town Hall as soon as possible.  In the 
meantime, could you please telephone Liz Bateson on 582047, or e-mail 
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk, with your decision. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Liz Bateson 
Principal Democratic Support Officer 
 
Enc. 

Contact: Liz Bateson 
Telephone: (01524) 582047 
Fax: (01524) 582161 
Minicom: (01524) 582175 
E-mail: ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Our reference: UB79 
Your reference:  

 
HEAD OF GOVERNANCE 
 
Town Hall 
Dalton Square 
Lancaster 
LA1 1PJ 
 
DX 63531 

Page 3



 

URGENT BUSINESS – CLIMATE CHANGE TO INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 
 
Councillor Consultation 
 
*I am/am not (*please delete as appropriate) in agreement with the recommendation:- 
 
(1) That Cabinet re-affirms its decision of the 4 October 2011, namely : 

 
 That Cabinet approves the allocation of £750,000 from the General Fund’s Invest to Save 
Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on the Council’s municipal buildings. 

  
That Cabinet approves the allocation of £1M from the Housing Revenue Account’s Major 
Repairs Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on council housing communal 
buildings. 

  
That a further report is brought back to Cabinet on developing the Council’s wider approach 
to the use of renewable energy.  
 

(2) That Cabinet notes the recent judicial review of the government’s proposed changes to the 
tariff rates and the government’s intention to appeal that decision in January 2012 and that 
Cabinet authorises officers to continue with this project and delegates to the chief executive 
the authority to proceed even if the parameters are changed, as long as the estimated 
payback period for the overall project does not exceed 15 years. 

 
 

 
Signed: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
Name: -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
Position Held: --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
Dated: -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive Decision 
 
*I agree/do not agree (*please delete as appropriate) to exercise my delegated authority and 
approve:- 
 
(1). That Cabinet re-affirms its decision of the 4 October 2011, namely : 

 
That Cabinet approves the allocation of £750,000 from the General Fund’s Invest to Save 
Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on the Council’s municipal buildings. 

  
That Cabinet approves the allocation of £1M from the Housing Revenue Account’s Major 
Repairs Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on council housing communal 
buildings. 

  
That a further report is brought back to Cabinet on developing the Council’s wider approach 
to the use of renewable energy.  
 

(2) That Cabinet notes the recent judicial review of the government’s proposed changes to the 
tariff rates and the government’s intention to appeal that decision in January 2012 and that 
Cabinet authorises officers to continue with this project and delegates to the chief executive 

Page 4



 

the authority to proceed even if the parameters are changed, as long as the estimated 
payback period for the overall project does not exceed 15 years. 

 
(3)    That the Overview & Scrutiny Chairman be consulted with a view to waiving call in, in   
accordance with Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17(a), to enable immediate implementation. 
 
Signed: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

Chief Executive 
 

Dated: -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
 
 
Please return to: Liz Bateson 
    Democratic Services, 
    Town Hall, 
    Dalton Square, 
    LANCASTER.       LA1 1PJ 
 
    Ref:  UB79 

Page 5



 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 

 

TITLE OF DECISION: CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 
 
 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: MARK CULLINAN 
POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CONTACT OFFICER: MARK DAVIES 

TELEPHONE: 01524 582401 
E-MAIL: Mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk 
Details of Decision:  
 
(1) That Cabinet re-affirms its decision of the 4 October 2011, namely : 

 
 That Cabinet approves the allocation of £750,000 from the General Fund’s Invest to 
Save Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on the Council’s municipal 
buildings. 

  
That Cabinet approves the allocation of £1M from the Housing Revenue Account’s 
Major Repairs Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on council housing 
communal buildings. 

  
That a further report is brought back to Cabinet on developing the Council’s wider 
approach to the use of renewable energy.  
 

(2) That Cabinet notes the recent judicial review of the government’s proposed changes 
to the tariff rates and the government’s intention to appeal that decision in January 
2012 and that Cabinet authorises officers to continue with this project and delegates 
to the chief executive the authority to proceed even if the parameters are changed, 
as long as the estimated payback period for the overall project does not exceed 15 
years. 
 

 
Reasons for the decision:   
 
An urgent decision is needed in order to implement the project within the 2011/12 financial year 
 

IS THE DECISION URGENT  
 
YES 
 
I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 
RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY CHAIRMAN:  

Page 6



 
I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER:  
DATE:  

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. UB79 
DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 6.1.12 

DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES: 6.1.12 

DATE DECISION 
PUBLISHED: 6.1.12 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
( publication day + 5 
working days): 

6.1.12 

  

Page 7



CABINET  
 

CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 
Report of Heads of Environmental Services, Health and 

Housing and Community Engagement 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek Cabinet’s approval to the proposals set out in the report 
 

Key Decision x Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date Included in Forward Plan 20/12/2011 

The main part of the report is public.  However, Appendices 1 and 2 are exempt from 
publication by virtue of paragraph, 3, of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 
1972 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Cabinet re-affirms its decision of the 4 October 2011, namely : 
 
 That Cabinet approves the allocation of £750,000 from the General Fund’s 
Invest to Save Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on the 
Council’s municipal buildings. 
  

That Cabinet approves the allocation of £1M from the Housing Revenue 
Account’s Major Repairs Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels 
on council housing communal buildings. 

  
That a further report is brought back to Cabinet on developing the 
Council’s wider approach to the use of renewable energy.  
 

(2) That Cabinet notes the recent judicial review of the government’s proposed 
changes to the tariff rates and the government’s intention to appeal that 
decision in January 2012 and that Cabinet authorises officers to continue 
with this project and delegates to the chief executive the authority to 
proceed even if the parameters are changed, as long as the estimated 
payback period for the overall project does not exceed 15 years. 
 

Page 8



 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 In developing its Corporate Plan for 2010-13 Cabinet redefined the priority 
around climate change: “Prioritising reducing the council’s energy costs and 
increasing income” should be the focus of Lancaster City Council’s objective to 
“Tackle the challenges of climate change”. (Cabinet Min No. 67 9/11/2010 
refers).  

 
1.2 At the 4 October meeting Cabinet  considered an urgent business report on 

‘Climate Change Invest to Change Projects’ and resolved that - 
 
 (1)        That Cabinet approves the allocation of £750,000 from the General Fund’s 

Invest to Save Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on the Council’s 
municipal buildings. 

  
(2)        That Cabinet approves the allocation of £1M of from the Housing Revenue 

Account’s Major Repairs Reserve to install solar photo voltaic (PV) panels on 
council housing communal buildings. 

  
(3) That a further report is brought back to Cabinet on developing the Councils wider   

approach to the use of renewable energy. (minute no. 45 refers) 
 
1.3 The decision was made because it supports the Economic priority in respect of 

‘Energy Coast’ and Climate Change and the redefined priority around climate 
change: ‘prioritising reducing the council’s energy costs and increasing income’ 
as the focus of the City Council’s objective to ‘tackle the challenges of climate 
change.’  

 
1.4 The new financial incentives for renewable energy generation can provide 

income streams over the long term and other significant opportunities. In addition 
to the obvious benefits (free energy, long term cost savings and income 
generation) there are potentially wider benefits for our local communities, (greater 
energy security, CO2 emissions reductions and a potential boost to the local 
economy). 

 
 
2 REPORT 

 
2.1 On Monday 31st October the Government published a document ‘Feed –in Tariffs 

scheme: consultation on Comprehensive Review Phase 1 – tariffs for solar PV’. 
 
2.2 The document made clear that the Coalition Government is committed to 

increasing the deployment of renewable energy across the UK in the sectors of 
electricity, heat and transport.  

 
2.3 However it also makes it clear that it thinks that the current level of Feed in Tariffs 

that are paid to incentivise Solar PV projects is unsustainable especially within 
the context of dramatically reduced costs of solar panels and associated 
installation costs. 

Page 9



 
2.4  These changes were the subject of a Cabinet briefing note sent to members on 

the 7 November 2011   
 
2.5 The Government’s proposal will mean that for schemes starting after 12 

December the feed in tariff rate will be reduced from 43p to 21p for 
small installations (up to 4 KW- eg house sized ) and from 33p to 15.2p for the 
next size up (10-50KW)  

 
2.6 In addition it proposes that multi-installation schemes that are commissioned 

after April 1, 2012 will be paid at 80% of these rates. What we are planning on 
doing would appear, at this stage, to be what the Government would call a multi-
installation scheme; however, this position could change.  

 
2.7 Also from April 1, 2012 there is a proposal that for schemes commissioned after 

that date only buildings that meet targets with regard to insulation will be able to 
qualify for Feed in Tariffs. 

 
2.8 The impact of these changes is that the estimated payback period quoted in the 4 

October report (7-8 years) now extends to between 11-13 years as suggested in 
the briefing note, which estimated 14 years.   

 
2.9  A judicial review of the government’s changes to the tariff system has declared 

them to unlawful in certain aspects and the government were not given the right 
to appeal. The judge refused the Energy Secretary permission to appeal against 
his ruling, saying his "prospects of success" were insufficient to justify 
permission. The minister must now ask the Court of Appeal itself to hear his case 
in the new year . So a possible best case scenario is we that revert back to our 
original 7-8 year payback period.   

 
2.10 Since the October much work has been taking place to implement the project 

with the aim of having the panels installed and producing solar energy before the 
end of the financial year. A multi agency team has been assembled including City 
Council and County Council officers, independent legal, health and safety and 
technical expertise and advice.  

 
2.11 A decision was taken early on in the project to develop a ‘Framework Agreement’ 

for renewable energies over a four year period with a number of contractors. A 
framework agreement is defined as an agreement with suppliers, the purpose of 
which is to establish the terms governing contracts to be awarded during a given 
period, in particular with regard to price and quality as opposed to a one off 
tendering exercise. 

2.12 A framework agreement has the benefit of reducing tender costs. A client can 
carry out one tender exercise for a number of projects rather than tendering each 
project separately, there will be a cost benefit. There is the possibility of 
economies of scale. The framework agreement will require the contractor to 
tender a price mechanism for the contracts that may be called off under the 
framework agreement.  

 

Page 10



2.13 The project team have called for submissions from a number of companies to be 
partners in this framework agreement. These have been received and evaluated 
by the project team and it is now ready to place a number of selected companies 
onto the framework and call off the first contract which will be to deliver solar PV 
installations to a number of municipal and communal housing buildings before 
the 31 March 2012  

 
 
 3 OPTIONS 
 
 Option 1:  

Do not invest in solar PV 
installations. 

Option 2: 
Reaffirm the decision to 
invest in solar PV 
technology and approve the 
establishment of a 
Framework agreement as 
the best way of delivering 
those schemes.  

Advantages: Allows Cabinet to consider 
other uses of the Invest to 
Save budget, either for 
other invest to save 
initiatives (potentially to 
generate savings sooner), 
or for alternative proposals 
to support its other 
proposed priorities (or 
indeed to help support 
service provision more 
generally)  

Accesses the long term 
estimated financial benefits 
offered by the FIT scheme, 
reduces our energy costs 
and carbon footprint. 
 
Solar PV is a proven 
technology 
 

Disadvantages: Misses the opportunity to 
secure the estimated 
financial benefits offered by 
the FIT scheme, reduce our 
energy costs and carbon 
footprint. 
 
Not showing community 
leadership in developing 
energy efficiency 
technologies across the 
district addressing social 
and environmental issues 
as well as economic 
 

Does not generate financial 
savings until the longer 
term – does not help with 
short / medium term budget 
strategies.  Estimated pay 
back periods are not 
guaranteed. 
 
Shows community 
leadership in developing 
energy efficiency 
technologies across the 
district addressing social 
and environmental issues 
as well as economic 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



RISKS 
  
The Council has no expertise in solar technology. Whilst it is mainstream activity in many 
other authorities the Council will need to continue to rely on independent expertise in this 
first phase. 
 
It may be that it will not prove possible to invest the whole amount by 31 March 2012. 
But any significant delay in decision-making will increase that risk still further (or make it 
a certainty).  It is anticipated there will be further changes to the tariff scheme post April 
2012.  Also, whilst solar PV is a proven technology, the estimated life of equipment is not 
guaranteed and inevitably there will be technological advancements in this field  – these, 
the timescales for implementation and the general risks involved in making financial 
projections over a fairly long period mean that payback periods are by no means 
guaranteed and if Cabinet approves progress of the scheme, these risks must be 
accepted.  In time, it could well be that the projects prove primarily environmental, rather 
than invest to save. 
 
A further uncertainty relates to government policy in this area which is currently the 
subject of legal action, as set out in the legal implications below. Our understanding is 
that this report represents the government’s current position on this matter though this 
may change subject to appeal.  Again though, over the longer term potentially there 
could be other developments in policy, which could affect the financial aspects.  On 
balance and given recent events, there is greater risk that any future changes are likely 
to worsen the financial pay back position rather than improve it. 
 
 
4 OFFICER PREFERRED OPTION 
 
Option 2 is the preferred option.  It is further advised, however, that additional 
parameters should be adopted regarding the financial pay-back aspects;  a maximum of 
15 years is preferred, in view of the uncertainties but also to give some flexibility on the 
assumption that the Council is keen to deliver against its associated 
energy/environmental priorities.  This maximum pay back parameter could be shortened, 
but it is not advised to lengthen it any further. 
 
 
5 DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 
 
This proposal has not been subject to any consultation. 
 
 
6 SUMMARY  

 
The new financial incentives for renewable energy generation can provide income 
streams over the long term and offer significant opportunities. 
 
The technology is tried and tested, cost effective and productive. 
 
In addition to the obvious benefits (free energy, long term cost savings and income 
generation) there are potentially wider benefits for our local communities, greater energy 
security, CO2 emissions reductions and a potential boost to the local economy)   

Page 12



 
Whilst the tariff changes alter one part of the equation, what needs to be considered also 
is that unit costs of installed PV units have fallen significantly and electricity costs 
continue to rise so the relevant cost factors do change all the time. 
 
The estimated net effect of these proposals is that based on reasonable assumptions, at 
this point in time, the payback period for an installation would increase from around 8 
years to around 11-13 years maximum.   
 
Therefore, Cabinet need to be aware, that from a financial context the proposed 
reduction has a significant impact on the returns that can be expected.  
 
However, there is nothing else in the Government’s proposals that we can foresee would 
cause us to reconsider the timescale within which we propose to deliver the project. In 
fact it reaffirms the need to move quickly. 
 
Furthermore, the project needs to be considered within the context of the wider 
environmental, social and economic benefits that it aims to deliver. 
 
All those points made, there are some fairly significant risks attached to implementation 
timescales and the pay back periods more generally, which must be recognised. 
 
 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
CORPORATE PLAN Supports Economic priority in respect of ‘Energy Coast’ and Climate 
Change 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
Reducing emissions will provide a positive impact to the local environment.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The detailed financial implications of the project (based on using the contractor who scored 
highest in the tendering exercise) are provided in – 
 
EXEMPT APPENDIX 1- this provides the financial model of the project assuming it can be 
completed by the end of the financial year and assuming the feed in tariff rate that the 
government imposed on Dec 12th (which is now the subject of legal challenge). 
 
EXEMPT APPENDIX 2- this provides the financial model of the project assuming that only a 
proportion of it can be completed in this financial year and the remainder is completed in 
2012/13. It also assumes that the government will introduce a reduced tariff for multi 
installations on April 1 2012 and will insist on buildings being energy compliant to qualify for 
the feed in tariff. 
 
The recommendations in this report are to invest in the installation of PV panels on the 
Council’s municipal buildings held within the General Fund and communal buildings /flats 

Page 13



held within the Housing Revenue Account. Full financial appraisal of each individual scheme 
cannot be done at this stage however based on initial discussions with industry experts it is 
expected that a typical investment in PV panels will generate income over 25 years, with 
payback potentially between 11 to 13 years. Payback is longer than the general guidance 
given in the MTFS, but the schemes may be considered (within the requirements of the 
Prudential Code) as they meet the Council’s priority on climate change and should continue 
to generate income for long after the initial outlay have been recovered.  
 
It is not known which municipal or HRA buildings can be fitted with PV panels or the final 
size of the system that can be housed on each building; this will be determined by survey 
carried out by the supplier as part of the tender and construction process.   
 
However, the financing options of the proposals set out in this report are set out below: 
 
i) GF - MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS 
Within the 2011/12 budget, Council has set aside £1.44M for Invest to Save schemes, of 
which a maximum investment of £750K is being proposed in this report, to be used to 
finance investment in PV panels. £175K from this reserve has been earmarked for boiler and 
other heating works at Lancaster Town Hall. 
 
ii) HRA - COMMUNAL BUILDINGS/FLATS 
The HRA does not currently have a specific reserve set up for Invest to Save initiatives, 
however, the proposals in this report to invest a maximum of £1M, can be met from the 
Major Repairs Reserve which currently stands at £6.9M and was set up for the purpose of 
funding major works to the Council Housing Stock. 
 
Each individual scheme will be subject to full business case appraisal by the established 
Invest to Save project board.  
 
Returned tenders are within the budgets identified above.  
 
To date approximately £20K has been set aside to cover costs incurred to date for legal and 
health and safety advice, project management capacity and technical expertise and advice 
to guide the project team through this process.   
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The s151 Officer has been consulted and her comments reflected within the report.  She 
would reiterate the need to consider the potential benefits (and risks) of applying the funds 
identified for solar PV against other potential uses of the funds, in reaching a final decision. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
In the recent High Court case referred to in the report, the claimants applied for judicial 
review of a decision of the Secretary of State for Energy and Climate Change concerning 
proposed modifications to feed-in tariffs that were payable for electricity generated by solar 
panels. The Secretary of State had introduced a scheme in relation to small solar panel 
systems to encourage the installation of electricity-generating technology, requiring licensed 
electricity suppliers to pay money to owners for every kilowatt hour of electricity generated. 
By the Energy Act 2008, the Secretary of State could modify the conditions of electricity 

Page 14



licences granted by OFGEM but was required, before making such a modification, to allow a 
consultation period with relevant persons. The Secretary of State proposed to reduce the 
feed-in tariff under the scheme with the intention that the modifications would take effect 
prior to the expiry of the consultation end-date. The issues to be determined in the case 
were whether (1) judicial review was available to challenge the Secretary of State's proposal, 
which had not yet been passed as law; (2) whether the 2008 Act gave the Secretary of State 
power to amend the feed-in tariff; (3) whether the proposal was to effect a modification to the 
feed-in tariff retrospectively. The claimants submitted that the proposal had a significant 
impact on the market and that the proposal amounted to a retrospective change. 
 
Although the full judgment of the 21st December is not yet available, it is understood that the 
court held: (1) that  where it was intended to give effect to a proposal by a statutory 
resolution or other similar procedure, the lawfulness of the proposal could be subject to 
judicial review, especially where, as in the instant case, the proposal had a significant impact 
on the market, (2) that it was doubtful whether the Secretary of State had a power to amend 
the feed-in tariff. OFGEM had been given the power to modify standard conditions, including 
those relating to feed-in tariffs, which was subject to a veto by the Secretary of State, not 
directions.  There was a strong argument that Parliament had intended that, once the 
scheme had been established, it was for OFGEM, not the Secretary of State, to make 
changes. (3) that on the assumption that the Secretary of State did have such a power, there 
was a strong presumption against retrospective legislation which might be overridden by 
express language or clear Parliamentary intention. In the instant case, Parliament had 
expressly provided that the Secretary of State had to consult before making a modification. 
The whole tenor of the scheme was prospective, and in circumstances where the proposal 
had an adverse impact, such modifications could not be made before consultation. Therefore 
the proposal was unlawful and if, following the proposal, such a modification was made it 
would be unlawful. 
 
It is not yet known whether the Secretary of State will seek leave to appeal, and therefore 
the effect of the judgment is uncertain at this stage. 
 
Following the Cabinet decision of the 4th October 2011, independent legal advice has been 
procured leading up to the development of the Framework agreement referred to in the 
report, and this will continue to be provided up to the point of contract award. 
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and her comments are incorporated in the report. 
.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officers: Richard Tulej / Mark 
Davies/ Suzanne Lodge 
Telephone: 01524 582079 / 2504 
E-mail: rtulej/gcox@lancaster.gov.uk 

 
  
 
 
 

Page 15



  
 
 

Page 16



Page 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 CLIMATE CHANGE INVEST TO SAVE PROJECTS
	ub79 climate change lttr to cab mem
	climate change
	Climate Change ITS Urgent business- final version (3) (2) (2)
	PVconfidappen1
	PVconfidappen2


